




























rcgul3tion ut 34 C.F .R. §§ l 00.3(u), 100.3(b )( I )(iii).14 Further, to the extent thnt some affinity 
gmups were offcn..--d only to black participants, these programs excluded participants based on 
race and treated District students nnd stnff differently on the bnsis of race, in violation of the 
Title VI regulation nt 34 C.F .R. §§ 100.3(n), l 00.3(b )( I )(ii). 15 OCR hns also detcnnined that the 
•-privilege walk,, used by the District during the 2019 Student Equity Summit nt King Arts-­
which explicitly instructed students to tnke steps bnsed on race, e.g., two steps forward if they 
were white and two steps back if they were black-singled out and separated students solely 
based on their race and color in violation of 34 C.F.R. §§ 100.3(a), 100.3(b)(l)(ii). 

OCR has serious concerns that items in the District's BLM week, N-word materials, and SEED 
trainings from the 2019-2020 school year, if followed as described, would have effectively 
required District personnel to treat students or other individuals differently based on race.16 By 
instructing teachers to ask their students what it means ''to be white without signing on to 
whiteness," or using materials that strongly suggest that individuals of different races have the 
right to use different words and language, or directing individuals-during a "privilege walk"­
either to take steps or refrain from taking steps based on invidious stereotypes about their race, 
the District appears to have deliberately singled out students and other individuals by their race, 
in order to reduce them to a set of racial stereotypes. Title VI bars such discriminatory conduct. 

OCR also has serious concerns that the other "privilege" activities the District carried out as part 
ofits trainings with staff and students during the 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 school years may 
have created a racially hostile environment. As noted above, OCR is bound to adhere to the First 
Amendmenfs free speech protections when considering allegations falling under Title VI. 
However, OCR notes with particular concern the "What is Whiteness?" exercise used in the 
District's Beyond Diversity trainings, among other lessons that advocated assigning students and 
individuals characteristics based solely on their race. OCR has significant concerns about the 
likely hostile effects of those activities, which would no doubt have adversely affected a 
reasonable person's ability to participate in or benefit from the District's programs and activities. 
More troublingly, these materials, if used as directed, would have led students to be treated 
differently based on their race, depriving them of the benefit of a classroom free from racial 
recrimination and hostility. Such treatment has no place in federally funded programs or 
activities.17 Nor is it protected by the First Amendment. 

14 Cf. Oak Park and River Forest (IL) High Sch. Dist. 200, Case No. 05-15-1180 (OCR Sept. 29, 2015) (finding that 
a racially exclusive Black Lives Matter assembly violated Title VI). 
15 The District produced no evidence that it ever assessed whether its use of race with respect to affinity groups, 
training exercises, its hiring goal, and discipline policy seived a compelling interest or that its use of race was 
narrowly tailored to meet a compelling interest, as required by Title VL 
16 OCR's concerns are stated here with respect to the probable use of the materials as written, since OCR did not 
obtain a recording of any instruction or investigate whether each part of the materials was followed strictly when 
used. 
11 f!ee 34 C.F.R. § 1003(b)(J)(iv) (prohibiting a recipient from "restrict[ing] an individual in any way in the 
enJoym_ent of any advantage or privilege enjoyed by others receiving any seivice, financial aid, or other benefit 
under [its] program" on the basis of race). 
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Hiring and Staffing 

OCR detennined that in December 2019, the District troublingly stated in a memorandum to 
staff and· principals that District principals should affirmatively consider the race of the staff 
applicants when selecting paid facilitators for its staff discussions of White Fragility. The 
evidence clearly establishes the District instructed principals to treat white staff differently from 
staff of other races when determining whether the staff member should be selected as a paid 
facilitator, in clear violation of the Title VI regulation at 34 C.F .R. § I 00.3(b )(1 )(vi). 

In addition, in this context, OCR finds exceedingly troubling the AS HR's December2018 
memorandum to the school board, in which she noted that because the District's "percentages of 
teachers of color ... do not yet mirror our student demographics," the District's goal was to 
"increase the number of teachers of color hired for the 2019-2020 school year by 5%." The AS 
HR conceded that the goals were created "somewhat randomly" in order to attain staffing 
"reflective" of student racial demographics. Although the strategies the AS HR sets out in her 
memorandum to attain this goal focus on increasing the diversity of the applicant pool, OCR has 
Title VI concerns that given the District's clear violations of Title VI in other respects, the 
District might have considered race as part of its hiring decisions. 18 

Discipline 

The evidence clearly establishes that the District's Discipline Policy incorporates into its 
definition of"effective discipline" the explicit consideration of the student's race. The Discipline 
Policy directs staff to consider the student's race when evaluating a behavioral/disciplinary 
situation. Accordingly, OCR found that the District's Discipline Policy violates the Title VI 
regulation at 34 C.F .R. § I 00.3(b )( l )(ii) because as written it illegally directs staff to consider a 
student's race when "evaluating a behavioral/disciplinary situation."19 The District's Policy to 
apparently impose racial discrimination in discipline has no part in federally funded education 
programs or activities. 

Retaliation 

Second Grade Musical 

Although the Complainant alleged that the modification of the school musical was done in 
retaliation for her earlier report of physical assault, OCR has determined that the Complainant's 
March l3, 2019 report to· the· Principal at King Arts regarding repeated· assaults· by students 
concerned issues of workplace safety, and not discrimination prohibited by Title VI. In this case, 
therefore, it was not a protected activity under Title VI. Additionally, the evidence indicates that 
the· Principal had· already made· his decision· to· m·odify the· sch-out musical at the· time· that the· 
Complainant reported the physical assaults, as evidenced by the fact that he had already sent out 
the email announcing the modification. OCR has therefore determined that there is insufficient 

18 See supra note 15. 
19 See supra note 15. 
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:vi~e~ce to conclude that the Complainant was retaliated against with respect to the Principal' s 
ecision to cancel the speaking portions of the second-grade musical. 

Complainant's·FTE Status· 

With respect to the Complainant's allegation that the District retaliated against her when it did 
not fmd· another· drama position for· her· to· teach· after she· asked· to· leave· King Arts, it is 
undisputed that the Complainant did not identify, and OCR's investigation did not reveal, any 
instance in which a teacher transferred to a new position absent a vacancy. Moreover, the 
Complainant, who was certified to teach ELA, acknowledges that she did not apply at any time 
for any of the several open, full-time ELA positions to which she could have applied. 
Furthermore, the Complainant applied to and was hired to serve on a curriculum committee 
comprised of members of the Drama Department during the summer of 2020. For all of these 
reasons, OCR determined that the District had a legitimate, non-retaliatory justification for 
assigning the Complainant to a .50 FTE for the 2019-2020 school year, because she asked to stop 
teaching at King Arts and there was not an available drama position at a different District school 
at that time. 

With respect to the Complainant's request to teach an advisory class, OCR determined that the 
Nichols Principal had more individuals interested in the fifth period advisory than available slots, 
and not enough experienced teachers to fill ninth and tenth period advisory classes. OCR further 
determined that the Complainant applied for only one of the three available advisory periods 
(fifth period), which received the most interest from teachers, and which was filled exclusively 
by teachers who had either prior advisory teaching experience or a relevant subject-matter 
background, because more teachers applied for the position than there were available vacancies. 
The Complainant did not apply for the additional advisory vacancies in the 2019-2020 school 
year, and she did not apply for any other vacant teaching positions in the District for which she 
was qualified, such as the ELA positions. For these reasons, OCR determined that the District's 
denial of the Complainant's request to teach fifth period advisory was based on the Principal's 
legitimate, non-retaliatory preference to fill fifth period advisory positions with relevantly 
experienced teachers. · 

Based on the foregoing, OCR finds insufficient evidence that the District retaliated against the 
Complainant as alleged. 

Conclusion 

?te attached Re~olution Agreement is aligned with the complaint allegations and, when fully 
unplemented~ will resolve· the· Title· VI violations described· above·. 

OCR will monitor the District's implementation of the Agreement until the District is in 
compliance with all of its terms. We look forward to receiving the District's next monitoring 
report. 
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This concludes OCR's · st· · . . . th 0 . tr· , mve igat1on ofthts complamt, and should not be interpreted to address 

th
e 1ad8 diet 8 co~pli~ce with any other regulatory provision or to address any issues other than 
ose ressed tn this letter. 

This letter·sets forth OCR's detennination· in individual OCR cases. This letter is not a fonnal 
statement of OCR policy and should not be relied upon, cited, or construed as such. OCR' s 
fonnal policy statements are approved by a duly authorized OCR official and made available to 
the public. The complainant may file a private suit in federal court, whether or not OCR finds a 
violation. 

Please be advised that the District may not harass, coerce, intimidate, or discriminate against any 
individual because he or she has filed a complaint or participated in the complaint resolution 
process. If this happens, the individual may file another complaint alleging such treatment. 

Under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be necessary to release this document and related 
correspondence and records upon request In the event that OCR receives such a request, we will 
seek to protect, to the extent provided by law, personally identifiable information, which, if 
released, could reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal 
privacy. 

OCR thanks the District, especially for its responsiveness and cooperation throughout the 
investigation of this complaint and during the negotiations of the Agreement. If you have any 
questions regarding this letter, please contact me at (202) 453-6790 or carol.ashley@ed.gov. 

Enclosure 

cc: James Petrungaro, Esq. 

Sincerely, 

Carol Ashley 
Enforcement Director 




